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ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES
140 COLUMBIA TURNPIKE ¢ FLORHAM PARK, N.J. 07932

973-822-3880
FAX: 973-822-0716

July 25, 2002

Members of the Board of Education
Florham Park Public Schools

140 Columbia Turnpike

Florham Park, NJ 07932

I

Dear Board Members:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Florham Park Public Schools for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2002 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and completeness
and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the District. To
the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects
and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of
the various funds and account groups of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to
gain an understanding of the District’s financial activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: 1) Introductory; 2) Financial; 3)
Statistical ; and 4) Single Audit. The Introductory Section includes this transmittal letter, the District's
organizational chart, and a list of principal officials. The Financial Section includes general purpose
financial statements and schedules, as well as the auditor’s report. The Statistical Section includes
selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The District
is required to undergo an annual Single Audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of
1984 and amendments of 1996 and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular Letter A133,
“Audits of State, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations and New Jersey OMB Circular Letter
98-07, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid, and are not a
required part of the general purpose financial statements.” Information related to this single audit,
including the auditor’'s report on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, and findings and recommendations, are included in the single audit section of this report.

1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES

The Florham Park School District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB). All funds and account groups of the District are
included in this report. The Florham Park Board of Education and its three (3) schools constitute the
District’s reporting entity.



.!\)

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels K through 8.
These include regular and special education for handicapped youngsters. The District completed FY
2001/2002 with an enrollment of 843. The following Average Daily Enroliment figures details the
changes in student enroliment over the last ten (10) years:

Fiscal Student Percent
Year Enrollment Change
2001/02 843 8.2%
2000/01 779 4.0%
1999/00 749 0.3%
1998/99 747 2.2%
1997/98 731 3.%%
1996/97 702 1.7%
1995/96 690 (2.3%)
1094/95 706 3.5%
1993/94 681 (0.6%)
1992/93 685 (2.9%)
1991/92 705 (1.3%)

Compared to other Districts, Florham Park remains financially healthy. Although funding is not

provided, the local tax payer is funding a $13.85 million bond referendum that was approved January,
22, 2002 to upgrade facilities. The District is currently carrying a 6% surplus of the net budget to
provide a cushion for the lack of State Aid, to fund emergency projects, and to provide necessary
reserves for future contingencies. .

MAJOR INITIATIVES

The District continues to meet its major challenges, vis-a-vis, a series of ambitious curriculum

reviews based on the Long Range Curriculum Plan, which must be completed to maintain
educational integrity. The curriculum reviews are in the areas of gifted and talented, reading,
kindergarten program, middle schoo!l language learning disability class. The District has also
continued to stress technology. All building computer labs have been updated, staff development
has been offered after-school hours and during the summer, and the elementary scheols are using
wireless laptop carts for instruction. '

In addition to technology, in-service training has focused on reading, language and mathematics
instruction to address the ESPA and GEPA requirements. District in-service has focused on a
diversified curriculum meeting the needs of each child.

INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS

As a recipient of Federal and State financial assistance, the District is also responsible for ensuring
that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation
by District management and the auditor.

ii



As part of the District’s single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of
. the internal control structure, including that portion related to Federal and State financial assistance
programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

BUDGETARY CONTROLS

in addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The objective of
these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual
appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipality. Annual appropriated budgets are
adopted for the general fund and the special revenue fund. The final budget amount as amended for
FY 2001/2002 is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line-
item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as reappropriation
of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be reappropriated are reported as
reservations of fund balance at June 30, 2002.

. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS

The District’s accounting records reflect generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), as
promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of
the District is organized on the basis of funds and account groups. These funds and account groups
are explained in “Notes to the Financial Statements,” Note #1.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION AT FISCAL YEAR-END

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of this
report, the District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. The following
schedule presents a summary of the general fund, special revenue fund, and debt service revenues,
for fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, including the amount and percentage of increases in relation to
prior year revenues:

Percent  Increase/Decrease
Revenue Am_g_m’g of Total from 99/00 Increase
Local Sources  $9,242,579 87.4% 322,370 3.6%
State Sources $1,173,064 11.1% (120,532) (9.3)%
Federal Sources 156,029 1.5% ' 10,648 7.3%
Totals $10,571,672 100% 212,486 2.0%

The following schedule presents a summary of general fund and special revenue fund expenditures
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, and the percentage of increases and decreases in relation to
prior year amounts:

iii



10.

11.

Percent Increase/Decrease  Percent of
Expenditures Amount of Total from 99/00 Increase/Decrease

Current Expense:

Instruction $4,440,669 42.8 65,216 1.4%
Undistributed |

Expenditures $5,226,229 50.4 (179,959) (3.3)%
Capital Outlay 170,203 1.9 (279,442) - (6.2%)
Debt Service 517,445 4.9 (6,550) 1.2%
Totals $10,354,546 100% 387,635 3.7

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

in July, 2002 the District issued $10,940,000 in Generai Obiigation Bonds. The proceeds of this
bond issue were placed in the District’s capital projects fund for use to provide funds for capital
improvements to the District's buildings and grounds. These improvements include additions and

various renovations in all three (3) school buildings.

CASH MANAGEMENT

The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by State statute as detailed in “Notes to
Financial Statements”, Note #2. The District has adopted a cash management plan which requires it
to deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). “GUDPA” was enacted in 1970 to protect
governmental units from loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. The
law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in New
Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board carries various forms of insurance, including but not limited to general liability, automobile
liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on property and contents, and
fidelity bonds.

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit — State statute requires an annual audit by independent certified public
accountants or registered municipal accounts. The accounting firm of Lerch Vinci & Higgins, CPA’s
was selected by the Board’s Finance Committee. In addition to meeting the requirements as set forth
in State statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act of
1984, as amended in 1996, and the related OMB Circular A-133 and State Treasury Circular Letter
98-07. :

iv



The Auditor's report on the general purpose financial statements and combining and individual fund
statements and schedules are included in the financial section of this report. The auditor's reports
related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit section of this report.

12. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Board of Education for their concern
in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the District, as well as contributing
their full support to the development and maintenance of our financial operations. The preparation of
this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of our
financial and accounting staff.

Respectfully submitted,

Tt . S

Fred R. Ferrone, Ed.D.
Superintendent of Schools’

n R. Csatlos
Business Administrator/Board Secretary
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LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
REGISTERED MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTANTS

17 - 17 ROUTE 208
FAIR LAWN, NJ 07410
TELEPHONE (201) 791-7100
FACSIMILE (201) 791-3035

DIETER P. LERCH, CPA, RMA, PSA CHRISTINE CORRUBIA, CPA, PSA
GARY J. VINCI, CPA, RMA, PSA ELIZABETH A. SHICK, CPA, RMA, PSA
GARY W. HIGGINS, CPA, RMA, PSA DONNA L. JAPHET, CPA, PSA
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JOSEPH F. KELLY, CPA, RMA, PSA JULIUS B. CONSONI, CPA, PSA
’ JENNIFER TORPEY, CPA, PSA
ROBERT W. HAAG, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Trustees

Florham Park Board of Education

Florham Park, New Jersey

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the Florham Park Board of Education, as of and . -
for the year ended June 30, 2002, as listed in the table of contents. These general purpose financial statements are the
responsibility of the Board of Education’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose
financial statements based on our audit. '

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department of Education, State of New
Jersey. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. ’

In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Florham Park Board of Education, as of June 30, 2002, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of
its proprietary fund types for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 25, 2002 on our consideration
of the Florham Park Board of Education’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. This report is an integral part of our audit performed n
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the
results of our audit.




Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements of the Florham
Park Board of Education, taken as a whole. The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state
financial assistance are presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations” and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 98-
07 "Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid", and are not a required part of the
general purpose financial statements. Additionally, the accompanying combining, individual fund and account group
financial statements and schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not
a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the Florham Park Board of Education. Such information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion,
is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

The accompanying financial information listed as the statistical section in the Table of Contents is presented for the purpose
of additional analysis and is not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the Florham Park Board of
Education. The information has not been audited by us and, accordingly, we express no opinion on this information.

LiﬂCL . V(‘Mc: ¢ Hc&sws' Lep

LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS, LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Public School Accountants

GnF e

Te ot €/ Bliss
/ Public School Accountant
PSA Number CSOO9_32

Fair Lawn, New Jersey
July 25, 2002
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FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001)

OPERATING REVENUES
Local Sources

Daily Sales - Reimbursable Program
Special Milk Sales

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries
Cost of Sales

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues
Federal Sources

Special Milk Program

Total Non-Operating Revenues
Net Income (Loss)

Retained Earnings, Beginning of Year

Retained Earnings, End of Year

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this Statement

8

EXHIBIT A-4

Proprietary Total
Fund Type (Memorandum
Enterprise Only)
2002 2001
$ - 7325 $ 5,029
7,325 5,029
- 10,066
7,272 7,486
7,272 17,552
53 (12,523)
4,939 4,831
4,939 4,831
4,992 (7,692)
2,517 10,209
$ 7,509 § 2,517




EXHIBIT A-5

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
(With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001)

Proprietary Total
Fund Type (Memorandum
Enterprise Only)
2002 2001
Cash Flows From Operating Activities .
Cash Received from Customers : $ 7,325 § 5,029
Cash Payments for Employees Salaries (10,066)
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods
and Services (7,272) (7,486)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities » 53 (12,523)
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
Cash Received from Federal Subsidy Reimbursements 4,993 4,755
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities o 4,993 4,755
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivaients 5,046 (7,768)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year : _ 2,207 9,975
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 7,253 $ 2,207
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided (Used)
by Operating Activities
Operating Income (Loss) 5 53 8 (12,523)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ 53§ (12,523)

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this Statement
9
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FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Florham Park Board of Education (the "Board" or the “District”) have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to school
districts. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. In addition, accounting policies of the Florham Park Board of
Education comply with the rules prescribed in Financial Accounting for New Jersey School Districts, the Audit Program, by
the New Jersey Department of Education. The more significant accounting policies of the Board are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

The Board is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established to function as an educational institution.. The Board
consists of elected officials and is responsible for the fiscal control of the District. A superintendent is appointed by the
Board and is responsible for the administrative control of the District. Under existing statutes, the Board's duties and powers
include, but are not limited to, the development and adoption of a school program; the establishment, organization and
operation of schools; and the acquisition, maintenance and disposition of school property.

The Board also has broad financial responsibilities, including the approval of the annual budget and the establishment of a
system of accounting and budgetary controls.

The Florham Park Board of Education includes in its financial statements the primary government and those component
units for which the primary government is financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as appointment of a
voting majority of the component unit's board, and either a) the ability to impose will by the primary government, or b) the
possibility that the component unit will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the primary
government. There were no component units with a positive response to any of these reporting criteria. Furthermore, the
Board is not includable in any other reporting entity on the basis of such criteria.

B. Fund Accounting

The accounts of the District are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund accounting to ensure observance of
limitations and restrictions on the resources available. The principles of fund accounting require that resources be classified
for accounting and reporting purposes into funds or account groups in accordance with the activities or objectives specified
for the resources. Each fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. An account group, on the
other hand, is a financial reporting device designed to provide accountability for certain assets and liabilities that are not
recorded in the funds because they do not directly affect net expendable available financial resources. Funds are classified
into three categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. Each category, in-turn, is divided into separate "fund types"
as follows:

Governmental Fund Types - These are the funds through which most governmental functions typically are financed. The
funds included in this category are as follows:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Board. Resources which are not legally or by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America to be accounted for in other funds are
accounted for in the General Fund.

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue sources legally
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. This fund accounts for federal and state financed programs, with
the exception of the federal milk program.
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FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. Fund Accounting (Continued)

Governmental Fund Types (Continued)

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the proceeds from the sale of bonds, lease purchases
and other revenues used for the acquisition or construction of capital facilities.

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of
general long-term debt principal, interest and related costs.

Proprietary Fund Types - These funds account for operations that are organized to be self supporting through user charges.
The fund included in this category is the Enterprise Fund.

Enterprise Fund - This fund is established to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises. The stated intent is that costs of providing goods or services to the students
on a continuing basis are financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Fiduciary Fund Types - These Funds account for assets held by the District in a trustee capacity or as an agent for
individuals, private organizations and other units of government. These funds are as follows:

Expendable Trust Fund - This Fund accounts for the assets and resources which are also held by the Board as a
trustee or agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments and/or other funds. This fund includes
donations for scholarships whereby both principal and revenues generated may be expended for purposes designated
by the donors and unemployment contributions and claims.

Agency Fund - This Fund accounts for assets held by the Board as a trustee or agent for individuals, private
organizations, other governments and/or other funds. Agency Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities)
and do not involve the measurement of results of operations. The fund assets are held for the purpose of payroll
related and student activities programs.

Account Groups - The Board also maintains two account groups as described below:

General Fixed Assets - All fixed assets used in governmental fund type operations (general fixed assets) are
accounted for in the general fixed assets account group, rather than in governmental funds. Fixed assets related to
food service operations are accounted for in the food service enterprise fund and are considered fund fixed assets.

General Long-Term Debt - All unmatured general long-term liabilities of the District (excluding those of proprietary
fund types) are accounted for in the general long-term debt account group. This includes serial bonds outstanding
which are expected to be financed from governmental funds, the outstanding principal balance on capital leases and
the noncurrent portion of the liability for compensated absences. '
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FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. All
governmental fund types and expendable trust funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement
focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet.
Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e.,
expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.

All proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement
focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the balance sheet. Fund equity
(i.e., net total assets) is reported as retained earnings. Proprietary fund-type operating statements present increases (e.g.,
revenues) and decreases (e.g., expenses) in net total assets. The Board has elected to follow GAAP prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and all Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) standard issued
prior to November 30, 1989. Subsequent to their date, the Board accounts for its proprietary funds as presented by GASB.

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used by all governmental fund types and expendable trust and agency funds.
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they
‘become both measurable and available). "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and
"available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current
period. The District considers revenues as available if they are collected within 60 days after year end. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on general long-term debt are recorded as fund
liabilities when due. :

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, interest, tuition and state and federal revenues.

The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by proprietary fund types. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.

The district reports deferred revenues on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenues arise when a potential revenue does
not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise
when resources are received by the District before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to
the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. - In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when
the District has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the combined balance sheet
and revenue is recognized.

D. Budgets/Budgetary Control

In accordance with the requirements of the New Jersey Department of Education, the District annually prepares its operating
budget for the forthcoming year. The budget, except for the special revenue fund, which is prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and serves as a formal plan for expenditures and
the proposed means for financing them.

The annual budget is adopted in the spring of the preceding year for the general, special revenue and debt service funds. The
budget is submitted to the county superintendent and is voted upon at the annual school election on the third Tuesday in
April. Budget adoptions and amendments are recorded in the District's board minutes. The budget is amended by the Board
of Trustees as needed throughout the year. The budget for revenues, other resources, other uses, and fund balances is
prepared by fund source and amount. The budget for expenditures is prepared by fund, program, function, object and
amount. The legal level of budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are
defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in
N.J.A.C. 6:20-2A.2(m)1. The Board approved several budget transfers during 2001/02. During 2001/02, the Board
increased the original budget by $271,150. The increase was funded by additional surplus appropriated, grant awards and
the reappropriation of prior year encumbrances.
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FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Budgets/Budgetary Control (Continued)

_ Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the year. For
governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America with the exception of the special revenue fund as noted below.
Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund types.
Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis. The grant
accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records
are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

The followmg presents a reconciliation of the special revenue funds from the budgetary basis of accounting as presented in
the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - General, Special
Revenue and Debt Service Funds to the GAAP basis of accounting as presented in the Combined Statement of Revenues
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Fund.

Total revenues & expenditures (budgetary basis) $289,017
Add: Encumbrances at June 30, 2001

(Net of Cancellations) 647
Total revenues & expenditures (GAAP basis) $289,664

E. Encumbrances - Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure
of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental funds
other than the special revenue fund are reported as reservations of fund balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute
expenditures or liabilities but rather commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund for which the District has received advances are reflected in the balance
sheet as deferred revenues at fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry will be made at the beginning of the
next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the certlﬁed budget by the outstanding encumbrance amount as of
the current fiscal year end.

F. Cash and Investments - Cash includes amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term investments w1th a maturity
date within three months of the date acquired by the Board. Investments are stated at fair value and are limited by NJS.A.
18A:20-37.

G. Receivables - All receivables are reported at their gross value, and where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated
portion that is expected to be uncollectible.
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FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
H. Tuition

Tuition Revenue - Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs. The
charges are subject to adjustment when the final costs are determined.

Tuition Expenditures - Tuition charges for the fiscal years 2000-01 and 2001-02 were based oh rates established by
the receiving district. These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been certified by the State.

1. Inventories — The cost of inventories of the governmental fund types are recorded as expenditures at the time individual
inventory items are purchased.

Food Service Fund inventories are valued at cost, using the First-in First-out (FIFO) method. There was no inventory in the
Food Service Fund at June 30, 2002.

J. Fixed Assets - The District maintains a formal system of accounting for its general fixed assets. General fixed assets
acquired or constructed are recorded at original cost. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on
the date received.

General fixed assets are reflected as expenditures in the applicable governmental funds, and the related assets are reported in
the general fixed assets account group. Expenditures which enhance the asset or significantly extend the useful life of the
asset are considered improvements and are added to the fixed asset's currently capitalized cost. The cost of normal repairs
and maintenance are not capitalized.

Assets in the general fixed assets account group are not depreciated. Depreciation of machinery and equipment in the
proprietary fund types is computed using the straight line method.

K. Compensated Absences — The District accounts for compensated absences as directed by Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB No. 16), “Accounting for Compensated Absences”. Accumulated sick leave is
accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned if the employee's rights to receive compensation are attributable to services
already rendered and it is probable that the School District will compensate the employee for the benefits. Sick leave pay
and salary related payments that are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are reported as
an expenditure and a fund liability of the governmental fund that will pay it. Amounts not expected to be liquidated with
expendable available financial resources are reported in the general long-term debt account group. No expenditure is
reported for these amounts until paid. Accumulated sick leave and salary related payments of the proprietary funds are
recorded as an expense and liability as the benefits accrue to the employees. ‘Under existing agreements employees are not
permitted to accumulate unused vacation days.

L. Long-Term Obligations - Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due, or when
resources have been accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early in the following year. For other long-term
obligations, only that portion expected to be financed from expendable financial resources is reported as a fund liability of a
governmental fund. The remaining portion of such obligations is reported in the general long-term debt account group.

M. Fund Equity - The unreserved fund balances for governmental funds represent the amount available for budgeting
future operations. The reserved fund balances for governmental funds represent the amount that has been legally identified
for specific purposes. Unreserved retained eamings for proprietary funds represent the net assets available for future
operations or distribution.
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FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

N. Interfund Transactions - Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses.
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it that are properly
applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of
expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and reimbursements are reported as transfers.
Nonrecurring or nonroutine permanent transfers of equity are reported as residual equity transfers. All other interfund
transfers are reported as operating transfers.

O. Property Tax Revenues - Property taxes which are levied pursuant to law and collected by the municipality are
transferred to the Board as requested and are recognized as revenues in the year they are levied and become available.
Property taxes collected in advance of the year-end for which they are levied and transferred to the Board are reported as
deferred revenues. The tax bills are mailed by the Municipal Tax Collector and are payable in four quarterly installments on
February 1, May 1, August 1 and November 1.

P. Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management of the District to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Q. Total Columns - The combined financial statements include a total column that is captioned memorandum only to
indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present financial position,
results of operations, or cash flows in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Neither are such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund transactions have not been eliminated from the
total column of each financial statement. '

R. Comparative Data - Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented in selected sections of the
accompanying financial statements in order to provide an understanding of the changes in the government's financial
position and operations. However, comparative data have not been presented in all statements because their inclusion would
make statements unduly complex and difficult to understand. Also, certain amounts presented in the prior year data have
been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current year's presentation.

NOTE 2 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
The District considers petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and certificates of deposit as cash and cash equivalents.

Deposits

The Board's deposits are insured through either the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or New Jersey's '

Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act. The New Jersey Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act requires all banks
doing business in the State of New Jersey to maintain additional collateral in the amount of 5% of the average public
deposits and to deposit these amounts with the Federal Reserve Bank for all deposits not covered by the FDIC.
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FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

NOTE 2 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Bank balances are insured up to $100,000 in the aggregate by the FDIC for each bank. At June 30, 2002, the book value of
the Board's deposits was $15,144,938 and bank balances of the Board's cash and deposits amounted to $15,541,784. Of the
bank balances $100,000 was covered by FDIC, $14,710,440 was covered by the New Jersey Governmental Unit Deposit
Protection Act and $731,344 are uninsured with the New Jersey Cash Management Plan. The Board's deposits which are
displayed on the combined balance sheet as "cash" are categorized as:

Category 1 - Insured or collateralized with securities held by the Board or its agent in the Board's name.

Category 2 - Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institutions trust department or agent in the
Board's name. .

Category 3 - Uncollateralized or collateralized with securities held by the pledging‘ financial institution, or by its
trust department or agent, but not in the Board's name.

Categories Bank
1) 2) 3) Balance
Deposits $14,810440 § - $731,344 §15;541§784

Investments

New Jersey statutes permit the Board to purchase the following types of securities:

g.

Bonds or other obligations of the United States or obligations guaranteed by the United States of America.
Government Money Market Mutual Funds.

Any obligations that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has issued, which security has a maturity date not
greater than 397 days from the date of purchase, provided that such obligation bears a fixed rate of interest.

Bonds or other obligations of the school district or bonds or other obligations of the local unit or units which the
school district is located.

Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date of not more than 397 days from the date of purchase, that are
approved by the New Jersey Department of Treasury, Division of Investments.

Local Government investment pools.

Agreements or the repurchase of fully collateralized securities, if transacted in accordance with NJSA 18A:20-37.

At June 30, 2002, the Board had no investments outstanding.
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FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

NOTE 3 DUE TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS

As of June 30, 2002, interfund receivables and payables that resulted from various interfund transactions were as follows:

Due From Due To
Other Funds Other Funds
General Fund $354,437
Capital Projects Fund $354,437
Trust and Agency Funds: '
Unemployment Expendable Trust Fund - 1,000
Payroll Agency Fund , 1,000
Total ' ' $355,437 $355,437

NOTE 4 FIXED ASSETS

The following is a summary of changes in the General Fixed Assets Account Group for the year ended June 30, 2002.

Balance, Balance,
June 30, JTune 30,
2001 Additions Retirements 2002

Land $ 108,278 $ 108,278
Land Improvements 11,408 11,408
Buildings and Building Impvts. 7,562,418 7,562,418
Machinery and Equipment 1,490,103  $115,881 $1,058 1,604,926
Construction in Progress 447,786 447,786
Total General Fixed Assets $9.172,207  $563,667 $1.058 $9,734.816

The following is a summary of proprietary fund-type fixed assets at June 30, 2002:

Food Service Equipment
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Net Fixed Assets
The straight-line method of depreciation is utilized in the proprietary fund.

Machinery and Equipment
Vehicles

NOTE 5 LONG-TERM DEBT

General Obligation Bonds

Enterprise Fund

$2,450
(2,450)

&.:_

12 years
8 years

The Board issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities.

The full faith and credit of the Board are irrevocably pledged for the payment of the principal of the bonds and interest

thereon.

Bonds payable at June 30, 2002 are comprised of the following issues:
$4,950,000, 1994 Bonds, due in annual
installments of $330,000 to $410,000 ,
through December 15, 2009, interest at 6.0% to 6.20%
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FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

NOTE 5 LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

The Board's remaining borrowing power under N.J.S.A. 18A:24-19, as amended, at June 30, 2002 was as follows:

3% of Equalized Valuation Basis (Municipal) $53,834,232
Net Debt Issued and Authorized But Not Issued 16,953,329
Remaining Borrowing Power ' $36,880,903
The Board’s schedule of principle and interest for long-term debt issued and outstanding is as follows:
Year Ending Serial Bonds v
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2003 $ 330,000 $177,945 $ 507,945
2004 350,000 157,545 507,545
2005 380,000 135,645 515,645
2006 400,000 112,645 512,645
2007 410,000 87,945 497,945
2008-2010 1,230,000 201,822 1,431,822

Capital Leases Payable - The District is leasing copiers, computers, buses and has upgraded the lighting fixtures throughout
the district totaling $625,889 under capital leases. The capital leases are for terms of 3 to 7 years, respectively. The
following is a schedule of the future mmimum lease payments under these capital leases, and the present value ofythe net
minimum lease payments at June 30, 2002. ,

Year Amount
June 30, 2003 , $ 119,277
June 30, 2004 119,277
June 30, 2005 93,732
June 30, 2006 51,634
June 30, 2007 23,582
Total Minimum Lease Payments ‘ 407,502
Less: Amount representing interest 50,975
Present value of net minimum lease payments $356,527

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities - During the year ended June 30, 2002, the following changes occurred in liabilities
reported in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group:

Balance, Balance,
July 1, June 30,

2001 Additions Reductions 2002
Bonds Payable $3,420,000 $320,000  $3,100,000
Compensated Absences Payable 202,173 $311,671 513,844
Obligation Under Capital Leases 380,442 94,865 118,780 356,527

$4,002,615 $406,536 $438,780  $3.970.371

NOTE 6 FUND EQUITY

Reservations and designations of fund balances of governmental funds are created to either (1) satisfﬁ( legal covenants that
require a portion of the fund balance to be segregated or (2) identify the portion of the fund balance that 1s appropriated for
future expenditures. Specific reservations and designations of the fund balance accounts are summarized below.

Reserved for Encumbrances - This reserve was created to represent encumbrances outstanding at the end of the year based
on purchase orders and contracts awarded for which the goods or services have not yet been received at June 30.
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FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

NOTE 6 FUND EQUITY (Continued)

Reserved for Capital Reserve Account — This reserve was created by budget appropriation to fund future capital
expenditures (See Note 14).

’ Reserved for Payment of Note Interest — This reserve was created to represent the premium received on note proceeds and
interest eamed on unspent note proceeds IIljledged to the payment of note interest due in accordance with the financing plan
approved by the Local Finance Board of the State of New Jersey on May 8, 2002.

Reserved for Excess Surplus — This reserve was established to represent the June 30, 2002 audited excess surplus that will
be appropriated in the 2003/04 original budget for property tax relief. ' :

Designated for Subsequent Year’s Budget — This designation was created to dedicate the portion of unreserved fund
balance utilized in the adopted subsequent year’s budget. :

NOTE 7 PENSION PLANS

Plan Descriptions

Substantially all of the Board’s employees participate in one of the following contributory defined benefit public employee
retirement sysiems which have been esiablished by State statute: the Teachers’ FPension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) or the
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS). These systems are sponsored and administered by the State of New Jersey.
The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund retirement system is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan with a
special funding situation, as under current statutes, all employer contributions are made by the State of New Jersey on behalf
of the Board and the system's other related non-contributing employers. The Public Employees Retirement System 18
considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. '

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund

The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund was established in January, 1955 under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to
provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all full time public school employees in the State.

Membership is mandatory for such employees and vesting occurs after 8 to 10 years of service for pension benefits and 25
years for health care coverage. Members are eligible for retirement at age 60 (55 for veterans of military service, Ch. 133,
P.L. 2001) with an annual benefit generally determined to be 1/60th (amended to 1/55th as of November 1, 2001, Ch. 133,
P.L. 2001) of the average annual compensation for the highest three fiscal years' compensation for each year of membership
during years of creditable service. Early retirement is available to those under age 60 with 25 or more years of credited
service. Anyone who retires early and is under age 55 receives retirement benefits as calculated in the above-mentioned
formula but at a reduced rate (one quarter of one percent for each month the member lacks of attaining age 55).

Public Employees' Retirement System

The Public Employees' Retirement System was established in January, 1955 under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to
provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all full time employees of the State or any county,
municipality, school district or public agency provided the employee is not a member of another State-administered
retirement system. Membership 1s mandatory for such employees and vesting occurs after 8 to 10 years of service and 25
years for health care coverage. Members are eligible for retirement at age 60 (55 for veterans of military service, Ch. 133,
P.L.2001) with an annual benefit generally determined to be 1/60th (amended to 1/55th as of November 1, 2001, Ch. 133,
P.L. 2001) of the average annual compensation for the highest three fiscal years' compensation for each year of membership
during years of creditable service. Early retirement is available to those under age 60 with 25 or more years of credited

service. Anyone who retires early and 1s under age 55 receives retirement benefits as calculated in the above-mentioned
formula but at a reduced rate (one quarter of one percent for each month the member lacks of attaining age 55).

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues publicly available financial
reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary information for TPAF and PERS. The financial
reports may be obtained by writing to the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and
Benefits, P.O. Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0295.
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FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

NOTE 7 PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Significant Legislation

Effective November 1, 2001, Chapter 133, Public Law of 2001 increases the retirement benefits under the Teachers’ Pension

and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) for service, deferred and early retirement

by changing the formula from 1/70 to 1/64 of final compensation for each year of Class A Service and from 1/60 to 1/55 of

final compensation for each year of Class B service. The law also increases the retirement benefit for TPAF and PERS

veteran members with 35 or more years of service and reduces the age qualification for this veteran retirement benefit from

60 to 55. The law further provides that existing retirees and beneficiaries whose retirement allowance is based on a service, -
deferred, early, or 35-year veteran retirement, would also receive a comparable percentage increase in their retirement

allowances (9.09%).

This law also provides up to a 2% reduction in TPAF member contributions from the normal contribution rate of 5%
beginning with calendar year 2002. After calendar year 2002, the rate of contribution will be reduced equally with employer
normal contributions, but not by more than 2%, from excess valuation assets if the State Treasurer determines that excess
valuation assets will be used to reduce normal contributions by the State. This change provides that future reductions in
TPAF and PERS member contribution rates will be calculated in a similar fashion.

To fund the additional accrued liability for the increase benefits, the law provides that the actuarial value of assets for both
TPAF and PERS, for the valuation period ending June 30, 1999, will be the full market value of the assets as of that date.

To fund the additional annual employer normal contribution for the increased benefits, the law establishes a benefit
enhancement fund for both TPAF and PERS which would be funded by excess valuation assets beginning with the valuation
period ending June 30, 1999. The amount of excess assets credited to the fund cannot exceed the amount of member
contributions for the fiscal year in which the normal contributions are payable. -

Funding Policy

The contribution policy is set by New Jersey State Statutes and contributions are required by active members and
contributing employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation.
TPAF and PERS provides for a current employee contribution rate of 4.5% of employees' annual compensation, as defined.
Chapter 415, P.L. 1999 provided for a reduction in the PERS employee contributions rate from 5% to 3%. Prior to January
1, 2001, the employee contribution rate was set at 4.5% in accordance with Chapter 115, P.L. 1997, which lowered the
contribution rate by %2 of 1% for calendar years 1998 and 1999. Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially
determined rate in both TPAF and PERS. The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for cost-of-living
adjustments, noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement medical premiums. Under current statute the Board is a
non-contributing employer of the TPAF.

The Board's contributions to PERS for the years ended June 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were offset by a Pension Security Act
credit; therefore no contributions were required.

During the year ended June 30, 2002, the State of New Jersey was not required to contribute to the TPAF for normal cost
pension contribution or post-retirement medical benefits on behalf of the Board. Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-
66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the Board $367,973 during the year ended June 30, 2002 for the employer's share of
social security contributions for TPAF members as calculated on their base salaries. These amounts have been included in
the general purpose financial statements, and the combining and individual fund statements and schedules as revenues and
expenditures in accordance with GASB No. 24.
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FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

NOTE 8 POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Post-Employment Medical Benefits

Chapter 384 of Public Laws 1987 and Chapter 6 of Public Laws 1990 required TPAF and PERS, respectively, to fund post-
retirement medical benefits for those State employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a
disability retirement. As of June 30, 2001, there were 51,482 retirees eligible for post-retirement medical benefits. The cost
of these benefits is funded through contributions by the State in accordance with Chapter 62, P.L. 1994. Funding of post-
retirement medical premiums changed from a prefunding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in fiscal year 1994 with
an additional contribution beginning in fiscal year 1996 to maintain a medical reserve of one half of 1% of the active State
payroll. '

The State contributed $85.4 million to the PERS and $175.6 million to the TPAF in the fiscal year 2001 for post-retirement
medical benefits. :

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to Chapter 126, P.L. 1992, which provides for free health benefits to
members of PERS and the Alternative Benefit Program who retired from a board of education or county college with 25
years of service. In fiscal year 2001, the State paid $34.5 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for 6,917 eligible retired
members. ‘

NOTE 9 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The District is a party defendant in some lawsuits, none of a kind unusual for a school district of its size and scope of
operation. In the opinion of the Board's Attorney the potential claims against the District not covered by insurance policies
would not materially affect the financial condition of the District. :

NOTE 10 CLAIMS AND JUDGEMENTS

The Board participates in a number of federal and state programs that are fully or partially funded by grants received from
other governmental units. Expenditures financed by grants are subject to audit by the appropriate grantor government. If
expenditures are disallowed due to noncompliance with grant program regulations, the Board may be required to reimburse
the grantor government. As of June 30, 2002, significant amounts of grant expenditures have not been audited by the
various grantor agencies but the Board believes that disallowed expenditures, if any, based on subsequent audits will not
have a material effect on any of the individual governmental funds or the overall financial position of the District.

NOTE 11 INSURANCE/RISK MANAGEMENT
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to general liability, automobile coverage, damage and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; termination of employees and natural disasters. The Board has obtained

insurance coverage to guard against these events to minimize the exposure to the District should they occur.

There has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the previous year nor have there been any settlements in
excess of insurance coverages in any of the prior three years. :
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FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

NOTE 11 INSURANCE/RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The District has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the “Benefit Reimbursement
Method”. Under this plan the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid
to its former employees and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to the
State. The following is a summary of District contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the State for
benefits paid and the ending balance of the District’s expendable trust fund for the current and previous two years:

District Employee Amount Ending
Fiscal Year Contributions Contributions Reimbursed Balance
2001-2002 $ -0- $ 133 $15,944 $60,184
2000-2001 -0- 2,825 9,796 75,054
1999-2000 -0- -0- 14,995 79,358

NOTE 12 DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Board offers its employees a choice of certain deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal Revenue
Code Section 403(b). The plans permit participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred
under the plans are not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. Since the
Board does not have any property or rights to the plan assets and no fiduciary relationship exists between the Board and the
deferred compensation plan, the plan assets are not included in the Board’s financial statements as of June 30, 2002.

NOTE 13 OPERATING LEASE

The District leases office space for the administrative office under a lease agreement which will expire on December 31,
2002 with two (2) six month options through December 31, 2003. The Board has not exercised its option under the lease
agreement as of the date of our report. The lease payments for the year ended June 30, 2002 were $35,592. Future
minimum lease payments for the next year are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ended Amount
June 30, 2002 $19,842
Total Future Minimum

Lease Payments $19.842

NOTE 14 CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was established by the District on October 16, 2000. The accumulation of funds will be used for
capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its
activity is included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the district’s approved Long Range Facilities
Plan (LRFP) and updated annually in the Quality Assurance Annual Report (QAAR). Upon submission of the LRFP to the
department, a district may deposit funds into the capital reserve at any time upon board resolution through the transfer of
undesignated, unreserved general fund balance or of excess undesignated, unreserved general fund balance that is anticipated
in the budget certified for taxes. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6:23A-5.1(d)7, the balance in the account cannot at any time exceed
the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its approved LRFP.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, the District had actual interest earnings of $25.
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FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

NOTE 15 CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, the designation for Reserved Fund Balance — Excess Surplus is a required
calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA).
New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General Fund fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did
not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their subsequent

year’s budget. The excess fund balance at June 30, 2002 is $76,186.

NOTE 16 DEFICIT FUND BALANCE

The District has an accumulated unreserved undesignated deficit of $675,492 in the Capital Projects Fund as of June 30,
2002. This deficit is the result of the District utilizing temporary financing to fund expenditures for certain capital projects.
As the Board permanently finances these appropriations, the District will realize as revenues the proceeds of the financing
(see Note 17). In addition, the District was notified by the State Economic Development Authority of a grant award totaling
$2,913,301 under the Educational Facilities Construction and Financing Act of 2000. As the District incurs expenditures
allowable under the grant, it will realize as revenue the State share of eligible costs associated with the grant award. This

Aafirit dnee nat indicate that tha Nicteint ic faning finoncial diffirnltes and is marmittad nrantine iindar nnacaimting nrineinlas
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generally accepted in the United States of America.

NOTE 17 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On July 9, 2002 the District issued $10,940,000 of school bonds dated July 15, 2002 at interest rates of 4.20% to 4.75%.
These bonds will mature in annual principal installments of $60,000 to $960,000 commencing July 15, 2004 through July
15,2022.

The proceeds of the bonds will be used to finance the construction of additions to and the making of major renovations and
improvements to the District schools including furnishings and equipment.
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GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District. Resources which are not legally or by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America to be accounted for in other funds are accounted for in the General Fund.






EXHIBIT B-1

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF JUNE 30, 2002 AND 2001

2002 2001
ASSETS
Cash $ 582229 § 643,688
Cash - Capital Reserve Account 1,038 1,013
Intergovernmental Receivable :
State 41,478 107,443
Other 13,461
Interfund Receivable 354,437 -
Total Assets $ 992,643 § 752,144
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Interfund Payable $ 349,065
Accounts Payable $ 2,390 -
Total Liabilities 2,390 349,065
Fund Balance
Reserved
For Encumbrances 101,906 2,490
Capital Reserve Account 1,038 1,013
Payment of Note Interest 236,887
Excess Surplus 76,186
Unreserved
Designated for Subsequent Year's Budget 95,000
Undesignated 574,236 304,576
Total Fund Balances 990,253 403,079
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 992,643 § 752,144

h
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than expendable trusts or
major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.






EXHIBIT C-1

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2002 AND 2001

2002 2001
ASSETS
Cash | $ 18597 $ 6,905
Intergovernmental Accounts Receivable - Other 3,516 -
Total Assets : $ 22,113 ' § . 6,905
LIABILITIES
Intergovernmental Payable
State $ 15,718 $ 710
Federal 290
Deferred Revenue 7 6,105 6,195
Total Liabilities $ 22,113 $ 6,905

34
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FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

EXHIBIT C-3

STATEMENT OF DEMONSTRABLY EFFECTIVE PROGRAM AID

BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

NOT APPLICABLE

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF EARLY CHILDHOOD PROGRAM AID

BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 20, 2002

NOT APPLICABLE

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPLEMENT AID
BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

NOT APPLICABLE
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EXHIBIT C-6

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF DISTANCE LEARNING NETWORK AID
BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

2002

Budgeted Actual Variance '

EXPENDITURES

Support Services
Other Purchased Services $ 608 $ 608 $ -
Total Support Services 608 608 -

Facilities Acquisition And Construction .
Nonlnstructional Equipment 34,283 34,283 -

Total Facilities, Acquisition and

Construction 34,283 34,283 -
Total Expenditures $ 34891 § 34,891 § -
Total Revised 2001-02 Distance Learning Network Aid $ 34,891

Actual Distance Learning Network Aid Carryover (June 30, 2001) -

Total Distance Learning Network Aid Available for 2001-02 Budget 34,891

Less: 2001-02 Budgeted Distance Leamiﬁg Network Aid
(Including prior year carryover) 34,891

Available and Unbudgeted DLNA Foods as of June 30, 2002 o -

Add: 2001-02 Unexpended DLNA -

2002-2003 Actual Carryover-DLNA 5§ -

2001-2002 Carryover Budgeted in 2002-2003 5 -
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

The Capital Projects Fund accounts for all financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital
facilities (other than those financed by Enterprise Funds and Trust Funds).






EXHIBIT D-1

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2002 AND 2001

2002 2001
ASSETS
Cash : $ 14,402,651 $ 307,772
Interfund Receivable ' 334,899
Intergovernmental Accounts Receivable - State 2,913,301 -
Total Assets $17315952 § 642,671
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Interfund Payable $ 354,437
Deferred Revenue 2,913,301
Notes Payable ‘ 13,853,329 -
Total Liabilities » 17,121,067 -
Fund Balance
Reserved
For Encumbrances 870,377
Unreserved
Undesignated (Deficit) (675,492) § 642,671
Total Fund Balances - 194,885 642,671
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $17,315,952 $ 642,671
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EXHIBIT D-2

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2002 AND 2001

2002 2001

Revenues

Local Sources

Interest Earned $ 131,740 $ 35,461

Total Revenues 131,740 35,461
Expenditures

Capital Outlay 447,786 -
Total Expenditures 447,786 -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditures (316,046) 35,461
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Premium on Note Proceeds 105,147

Operating Transfers Out (236,887) (35,461)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (131,740) (35,461)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Over/(Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (447,786) -
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 642,671 642,671
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 194,885 $ 642,671
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EXHIBIT D-3

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SUMMARY STATEMENT OF PROJECT EXPENDITURES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Expenditures to Date

Modified Balance,
Number Issue/Project Title Appropriation Transfers Appropriation = Prior Years  Current Year June 30,2002
12/14/93 Improve Briarwood, Brooklake &
Ridgedale Schools - Construction of
Addition, Major Repairs, Acquisition
of New Furniture, Equipment and :
Apparatus $ 4,950,000 § (642,671) § 4,307,329 § 4,307,329
01/22/02 Construct, furnish and equip educational
and physical plant renovations and
additions to the Briarwood, Brooklake and :
Ridgedale Schools 13,853,329 642,671 14,496,000 - § 447786 $ 14,048,214
$ 18,803,329 § - $ 18,803,329 $§ 4,307,329 § 447,786 14,048,214
Less: Unrealized Revenue 13,853,329

Fund Balance, June 30, 2002 3 194,885
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DEBT SERVICE FUND

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal,
interest and related costs.






EXHIBIT E-1

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
DEBT SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2002 AND 2001

2002 2001
ASSETS
Cash , $ 35,466 $ 73,762
Total Assets | $ 35,466 $ 73,762
FUND BALANCES
Designated for Subsequent Year's Budget $ 35,466 § 38,296
Unreserved, Undesignated - 35,466
Total Fund Balances $ 35466 $ 73,762
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ENTERPRISE FUND

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to-private business
enterprises where the intent is that the costs of providing goods or services be financed through user charges.

Food Service Fund — This fund provides for the operation of food services in all schools within the school district.






EXHIBIT F-1

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
FOOD SERVICE ENTERPRISE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF JUNE 30, 2002 AND 2001
Total
2002 2001
ASSETS
Current Assets.
Cash _ $ 7253 § 2,207
Intergovernmental Receivable - Federal 256 310
Total Current Assets 7,509 2,517
Fixed Assets
Equipment 2,450 2,450
Accumulated Depreciation (2,450) (2,450)
Fixed Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation) - -
Total Assets $ 7,509 $ 2,517
FUND EQUITY
Fund Equity ‘
Unreserved Retained Earnings $ 7,509 $ 2,517
Total Fund Equity $ 7,509 § 2,517
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FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
FOOD SERVICE ENTERPRISE FUND

EXHIBIT F-2

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2002 AND 2001

OPERATING REVENUES
Local Sources
Daily Sales-Reimbursable Programs
Special Milk Program

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries
Cost of Sales

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues
Federal Sources

Special Milk Program
Total Nonoperating Revenues

Net Income (Loss)

Retained Earnings, Beginning of Year

Retained Earnings, End of Year

45

Total

2 2001
7,325 $ 5,029
7,325 5,029

- 10,066 -
7,272 7,486
7,272 17,552

53 (12,523)
4,939 4831
4,939 4,831
4,992 (7,692)
2,517 10,209
7,509 $ 2,517




FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
FOOD SERVICE ENTERPRISE FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2002 AND 2001

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Payments for Employees Salaries
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods

and Services

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
Cash Received from Federal Subsidy Reimbursements

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided (Used)

by Operating Activities
Operating Income (Loss)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
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EXHIBIT F-3

Total
002 2001
7,325 $ 5,029
(10,066)
(7,272) (7,486)
53 (12,523)
4,993 4,755
4,993 4,755
5,046 (7,768)
2,207 9,975
7,253 § 2,207
53 % (12,523)
53 % (12,523)
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TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS

The Trust and Agency Funds account for assets held by the government in a trustee capacity. Agency funds are used to

account for assets held by the government as an agent for individual, private organizations, other governments and/or other
funds.

Expendable Trust Fund — This Fund is established to account for the assets and resources which are also held by the Board
as a trustee or agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments and/or other funds. These funds include
donations for scholarships; both principal and revenues generated may be expended for purposes designated by the donors
and unemployment compensation insurance contributions and claims.

Agency Fund — This Fund is established to account for assets held by the Board as a trustee or agent for individuals, private
organizations, other governments and/or other funds. Agency Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do
not involve the measurement of results of operations. The fund assets are held for the purpose of Payroll related and Student -
Activities programs.
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FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
NON-EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND - SCHOLARSHIP
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

' AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

NOT APPLICABLE
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EXHIBIT G-2




EXHIBIT G-3

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Balance, Balance,
July 1, June 30,
STUDENT ACTIVITY FUND 2001 Additions Deletions 2002
ASSETS
Cash $ 14,610 $ 111,834 § 102,515 § 23,929
Total Assets $ 14,610 $ 111,834 $ 102,515 $ 23,929
LIABILITIES
Due to Student Groups $ 14,610 $ 111,834 102,515 § 23,929
Total Liabilities $ 14,610 § 111,834 § 102,515 $ 23,929
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ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS
Brooklake
Briarwood

MIDDLE SCHOOLS
Ridgedale

Total

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
STUDENT ACTIVITY FUND
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITY

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

EXHIBIT G-4

Balance, Balance,
July 1, June 30,
2001 Additions Deletions 2002
$ 566 $ 8,971 8,336 § 1,201
1,016 7,118 5,505 2,629
13,028 95,745 88,674 20,099
$ 14,610 $ 111,834 102,515 $ 23,929
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EXHIBIT G-5
FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
PAYROLL AGENCY FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Balance, Balance,
July 1, June 30,
PAYROLL FUND S .2001 Additions Deletions 2002
ASSETS
Cash $ 6,950,085 § 6,942,199 § 7,886
Interfund Accounts Receivable $ 13,166 - 13,166 -
Total Assets $ 13,166 $§ 6,950,085 $ 6,955365 $ 7,886
LIABILITIES
Cash Overdraft $ 8,079 $ 8,079
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 5,087 $ 2,906,698 2,906,279 $ 5,506
Accrued Salaries and Wages 4,042,387 4,041,007 1,380
Interfund Payable - 1,000 - 1,000
Total Liabilities $ 13,166 $ 6,950,085 $ 6,955,365 $ 7,886
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EXHIBIT G-6

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
(With Comparative Totals as of June 30, 2001)

Unemployment Total
Insurance Scholarship 002 2001
REVENUES
Employee Contributions $ 133 $ 133§ 2,825
Interest 941 § 73 1,014 2,842
Total Revenues 1,074 73 1,147 5,667
EXPENDITURES
Current
Unemployment Claims 15,944 15,944 9,796
Scholarship Awards - 150 150 100
- Total Expenditures 15,944 150 16,094 9,896
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over/(Under) Expenditures (14,870) an (14,947) (4,229)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 75,054 ' 6,782 81,836 86,065
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 60,184 §$ 6,705 $ 66,889 § 81,836
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GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP

General Fixed Assets is a balanced account group used to establish control and accountability for the costs of all real
property and moveable equipment owned by the District. The investment in General Fixed Assets is carried until the
disposition of the property and ownership is relinquished. Depreciation on fixed assets is not recorded.






EXHIBIT H-1

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2002 AND 2001

[\]
(=g
[\S]
[\
=2
—t

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
Land _ § 108278 § 108,278
Land Improvements 11,408 11,408
Buildings and Buildings Improvements - 7,562,418 7,562,418
Machinery and Equipment 1,604,926 1,490,103
Construction in Progress 447,786 -
Total General Fixed Assets $ 9,734816 $ 9,172,207

INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

General Fund $ 4,822,627 $ 4,721,722
Special Revenue Fund - 78,987 75,069
Capital Projects Fund 4,714,924 4,267,138
Donations 118,278 108,278

Total Investment in General Fixed Assets : $ 9,734816 § 9,172,207
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FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP

EXHIBIT H-2

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2002 AND 2001

General Fund
Special Revenue Fund
Capital Projects Fund

Donations

Balance,
June 30,
2001 Increases

$4,721,722 ' $ 101,963

75,069 3,918
4,267,138 447,786
108,278 10,000

Balance,
June 30,
Decreases 2002

$ 1,058 § 4,822,627
78,987
4,714,924

- 118,278

$9,172,207 $ 563,667

$ 1,058 § 9,734,816
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GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT ACCOUNT GROUP

The general long-term debt account group is used to record the outstanding principal balances of the general long-term
liabilities of the school district. This includes serial bonds outstanding, obligations under capital leases and the noncurrent

liability for compensated absences.






EXHIBIT I-1

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT ACCOUNT GROUP
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT

AS OF JUNE 30, 2002 AND 2001
2002 2001
OTHER DEBITS
Amount Available in Debt Service Fund 3 35,466 $ 73,762
Amount to be Provided for Retirement
of Long-Term Debt 3,934,905 3,928,853
Total Amount to be '
Provided for General Long-Term Debt $ 3,970,371 $ 4,002,615
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Serial Bonds Payable $ 3,100,000 $ 3,420,000
Obligations Under Capital Leases 356,527 380,442
Compensated Absences Payable 513,844 202,173
Total General Long-Term Liabilities $ 3,970,371 § 4,002,615
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FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT ACCOUNT GROUP
STATEMENT OF OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASES

EXHIBIT I-3

AS OF JUNE 30, 2002
Amount of Balance, Issued Retired Balance, _
Original Interest July 1, Current Current June 30,
Series Issue Rate 2001 Year Year 2002
1998 Computers $ 73,538 13.495 $ 22,007 $ 22,007
2000 Lighting Retrofit Project 129,336 6.50 114,161 16,162 § 97,999
2000 Bus- 39 Passenger 54,733 5.75 32,772 10,319 22,453
2000 Bus- 54 Passenger 60,233 5.38 36,074 11,400 24,674
2001 Bus - 54 Passenger (2) 123,782 6.00 96,060 21,958 74,102
2001 Savin Copier (3) 89,403 6.50 79,368 16,069 63,299
2002 Bus - 54 Passenger 54,841 4.99 $ 54,841 12,662 42,779
2002 Bus - 24 Passenger 40,024 4.99 - 40,024 8,803 31,221
$ 380,442 $ 94,865 $ 118,780 $ 356,527
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EXHIBIT J-1A

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED MAINTANENCE FOR SCHOOL FACILITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2002 AND 2001

(UNAUDITED)
Undistributed Expenditures - Required
Maintenance for School Facilities
11-000-261-xxx
School Facilities Project Nos. 2002 2001
Brooklake Elementary School N/A $ 105,761 § 110,290
Briarwood Elementary School ‘ N/A 104,660 109,141
Ridgedale Elementary School N/A 156,806 163,521
Total School Facilities ‘ $ 367,227 $ 382,952

Source: School District Records

60



EXHIBIT J-2

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
GOVERNMENTAL FUND REVENUES BY SOURCE*

LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)
Fiscal Year Local Tax Other Local State Federal
Ended June 30 Levy Revenue Revenue Revenue . Total
1994 $ 6,916,292 § 410,513 $ 462,248 § 144,500 § 7,933,553
1995 7,363,640 542,207 327,620 99,600 8,333,067
1996 7,825,911 - 112,514 560,838 110,749 . 8,610,012
1997 | 7,331,806 309,722 946,911 61,228 8,649,667
1998 7,552,937 135,719 935,193 41,146 8,664,995
1999 7,939,569 125,206 1,131,625 106,997 9,303,397
2000 8,392,863 83,605 1,199,108 97,541 9,773,117
2001 8,818,316 101,893 1,293,596 145,381 10,359,186
2002 9,085,149 157,430 1,173,064 156,029 10,571,672

* Includes General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds

Source: School District's Financial Statements
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EXHIBIT J-3

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND OTHER LOCAL REVENUE BY SOURCE

LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)
Fiscal Year State Health  Prior Year Cancel Old
Ended Benefits Orders  Outstanding
June 30 Interest Tuition Rebate Canceled Checks Miscellaneous Total
1994 $ 19,231 § 365,715 $ 17,095 § 8472 § 410,513
1995 58,235 359,936 $§ 110,862 $ 9943 3A,231 542,207
1996 97,358 8,294 6,862 112,514
1997 88,891 13,500 3,358 24,423 130,172
1998 76,547 14,500 22,798 113,845
1999 70,098 18,423 15,226 | 12,816 116,563
2000 42,813 31,130 9,662 83,605
2001 35,546 54,723 10,390 1,234 101,893

2002 29,327 12,998 46,634 19,745 48,726 157,430

Source: School District Records
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FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
MUNICIPAL PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Year Ended ‘
December 31

1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000

2001

Source: Municipal Records

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Unaudited)

Total Tax Levy

$

19,655,771
19,909,362
20,974,987
21,694,527
22,333,604
22,255,845
22,598,579
22,790,811
24,932,203

22,255,845
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Current Year

$

Collections

19,273,549
19,559,186
20,828,606
21,446,412
22,142,323
22,150,158
22,481,815
22,667,606
24,690,492

22,150,158

EXHIBIT J-4

Percent of Tax
Levy Collectedr

98.06%
98.24%
99.30%
98.85%
99.14%
99.53%
99.48%
99.45%
99.03%

99.52%



EQUALIZED ANALYSIS OF REAL PROPERTY VALUES
LAST TEN YEARS

Year Ended
December 31

1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001

2002

Source: Municipal Records

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION

$

(Unaudited)

Net Assessed

Valuations

1,129,304,953 §

1,109,634,575
1,397,501,274
1,372,336,818
1,368,293,504
1,358,871,029
1,417,294,048
1,451,431,600
1,498,599,362

1,553,727,613
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Equalized
Valuations

1,374,285,664
1,465,568,192
1,519,155,773
1,554,175,332
1,486,144,785
1,450,727,460
1,525,901,490
1,663,221,989
1,840,681,818

2,109,776,583

EXHIBIT J-5

Percent of Tax

Assessed to Equalized

Valuations
82.17%
75.71%
-91.99%
88.30%
92.07%
94.65%
93.77%
88.29%
82.06%

74.16%



EXHIBIT J-6

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION

PROPERTY TAX RATES
PER $100 OF ASSESSED VALUATION
LAST TEN YEARS
(Unaudited)
Calendar Local Local Regional
Year Purpose County School School Total
1993 0.41 0.38 0.61 0.37 1.77
1994 042 0.42 0.65 0.40 1.89
1995 0.33 0.33 0.55 0.34 1.55
1996 0.38 0.35 0.55 0.34 ' 1.62
1997 0.40 0.34 0.54 0.34 1.62
1998 0.42 0.32 0.57 0.33 1.64
1999 0.42 0.2 0.58 _ 0.31 1.59
2000 0.44 0.36 0.59 0.31 1.70
2001 0.46 037 0.60 0.32 1.75

2002 0.47 0.40 0.63 0.33 1.83

Source: Borough Tax Collector
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Fiscal Year
Ended June 30

1993

1994

1995

1996

1997

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002

EXHIBIT J-7

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
RATIO OF LONG-TERM DEBT
TO ASSESSED VALUE AND LONG-TERM DEBT PER CAPITA

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)
Ratio of Net
Net Net Bonded Debt Bonded
School District Assessed Bonded to Assessed Debt
Population Valuation Debt Value Per Capita
8,700 $ 1,129,304,953
8,805 1,109,634,575
8,906 1,397,501,274 $ 4,950,000 0.35% $ 556
8,980 1-,372,336,818 4,745,000 0.35% 528
9,061 1,368,293,504 4,510,000 0.33% 498
9,073 1,358,871,029 4.265,000 0.31% 470
9,089 1,417,294,048 3,995,000 0.28% 440
8,857 1,451,431,600 3,715,000 0.26% 419
8,857 1,498,599,362 3,420,000 0.23% 386
8.857 1,553,727,613 3,100,000 0.20% 350

Source: United States Bureau of Census
School District's Records
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EXHIBIT J-8

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(Unaudited)
Equalized
Valuation
Year Basis

2001 $ 2,015,519,417
2000 1,768,744,333
1999 1,599,159,417
Average equalized valuation of taxable property 7 $ 1,794,474,389
School borrowing margin (3% of $1,794,474,389) $ 53,834,232
Net school debt issued and authorized but not issued as of June 30, 2002 16,953,329
School Borrowing Margin Available $ 36,880,903

Source: 2001 Borough of Florham Park Annual Debt Statement
School District's Records

67




FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Unaudited)

Municipal Debt: (1)
Florham Park School District (as of June 30, 2002)

Regional School District
~ Borough of Florham Park

Total Direct Debt

Overlapping Debt Apportioned to the Municipality:
Morris County: (2)
County of Morris (A)
Total Overlapping Debt

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt

.(A) The debt for this entity was apportioned by dividing the Municipality's 2001
equalized value by the total 2001 equalized value for Morris County.

Sources:
(1) Borough of Florham Park 2001 Annual Debt Statement
(2) Morris County 2001 Annual Debt Statement
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Total Debt

$ 16,953,329

239,266
9,180,000

26,372,595

9,394,655
9,394,655

§ 35,767,250



Fiscal Year
Ended June 30

1994

1995

1996

1997

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES
FOR LONG-TERM DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

Principal

205,000
235,000
245,000
270,000
280,000
295,000

320,000

Source: School District Financial Statements
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LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)
Total
Total Debt  General Fund
Interest Service Expenditures
$ 8,011,636
149,422 § 149,422 7,651,454
292,695 497,695 7,795,367
279,492> 514,492 8,382,952
265,095 510,095 8,323,582
249,645 519,645 9,305,436
233,145 513,145 9,281,084
215,895 510,895 9,948,591
197,445 517,445 9,547,437

Ratio of
Debt Service
to General

Expenditures

1.95%
6.38%
6.14%
6.13%
5.58%
5.53%
5.14%

5.42%

EXHIBIT J-10




EXHIBIT J-11

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN YEARS
(Unaudited)
School
Year Ended Unemployment Per Capita District
December 31 Rate Income (1) Population

1992 6.6% $ 34,147 8,649
1993 ) 4.5 35,863 8,700
1994 3.2 : - 36,615 8,805
1995 | 45 39,478 | 8,906
1996 4.2 - 42,090 8,980
1997 34 45,285 9,061
1998 29 47,915 9,073
1999 2.9 42,133 ‘ 9,089
2000 24 N/A 8,857
2001 25 N/A 8,857

(1) - Represents Morris County

Source: United States Bureau of Census
School District Records
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EXHIBIT J-12

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS

(Unaudited)
Asa%

2001 of District's
Assessed Net Assessed

Taxpayer Valuation Valuation
Park Avenue Realty $ 77,358,100 5.16
Exxon Research & Engineering Co. 69,800,000 4.66
Rock Florham LLC 51,368,000 3.43
100/200 Campus Drive 50,214,600 3.35
Koll Bran ' 36,417,900 2.43
Avalon Bay Communities 33,478,100 2.23
Dolce/AEW Properties 28,944,400 1.93
Campus Drive LLC 27,032,800 1.80
Rock Florham LLC 25,587,600 1.71
Prudential Insurance Co. 19,200,000 1.28
$ 419,401,500 27.98

Source: 2001 Tax Duplicate
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EXHIBIT J-13

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION

ATTENDANCE DATA
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)
Fiscal Year Average  Average %Change in
Ended Daily Daily Average Daily  Attendance
June 30 Enrollment Attendance  Enrollment %
1993 683 656  03% 96.0%
1994 681 654 (3.5) _ 96.0%
1995 706 676 23 95.8%
1996 690 658 1.7n 95.3%
1997 702 673 4.0y 95.9%
1998 731 700 2.1) 95.9%
1999, 747 716 4.1 95.5%
2000 749 716 0.3 95.60%
2001 779 746 4.0 95.80%
2002 838 804 7.6 95.94%

Source: School District Records
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EXHIBIT J-14

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE
JUNE 30, 2002
(Unaudited)
Coverage Deductible

School Package Policy - Graphics Arts Mutual Insurance Company

Property - Blanket Building & Contents $ 18,026,387 § 1,000

Increased Cost of Construction 5,000,000

Energy Systems - Property Damage 100,000,000

Commercial Liability 1,000,000

Workers Compensation 5,000,000

School Board Legal Liability 5,000,000

Automobile 1,000,000 1,000

Employee Dishonesty 25,000

Robbery & Safe Burglary - Outside 25,000
Public Official Bond - Board Secretary. 100,000
Public Official Bond - Treasurer of School Monies 203,000

Source: School District's records
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Date established
Area
Number of Schools

Elementary
Middle High School

Employees
Certified
Other

Total Employees
Teacher/Student Ratio
Elementary
Middle

Student Count

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS
JUNE 30, 2002
(Unaudited)
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1930

7.52 Sq. Miles

I b= b
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LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS, LLP EXHIBIT K-1

Page 1
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
REGISTERED MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTANTS
17 - 17 ROUTE 208
FAIR LAWN, NJ 07410

TELEPHONE (201) 791-7100

FACSIMILE (201) 791-3035
DIETER P. LERCH, CPA, RMA, PSA CHRISTINE CORRUBIA, CPA, PSA
GARY J. VINCI, CPA, RMA, PSA ELIZABETH A. SHICK, CPA, RMA, PSA
GARY W. HIGGINS, CPA, RMA, PSA DONNA L. JAPHET, CPA, PSA
JEFFREY C. BLISS, CPA, RMA, PSA - RICHARD P. CAHILL, CPA, RMA, PSA
PAUL J. LERCH, CPA, RMA, PSA ANDREW PARENTE, CPA, PSA
JOSEPH F. KELLY, CPA, RMA, PSA JULIUS B. CONSCNI, CPA, PSA

JENNIFER TORPEY, CPA, PSA
ROBERT W. HAAG, CPA, PSA

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Trustees

Florham Park Board of Education

Florham Park, New Jersey

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Florham Park Board of Education as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2002, and have issued our report thereon dated July 25, 2002. We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and audit requirements as
prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Florham Park Board of Education’s general purpose financial -
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of’
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of
noncompliance that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by
Division of Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey which is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs as item 2002-1. We also noted a certain immaterial instance of noncompliance that we have
reported to management of the Florham Park Board of Education in a separate “Auditors’ Management Report on
Administrative Findings — Financial Compliance and Performance “dated July 25, 2002.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Florham Park Board of Education’s intemal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the general purpose
financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. However, we noted certain
matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be reportable conditions.
Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation
of the internal control over financial reporting that, in our judgement, could adversely affect Florham Park Board of
Education’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in
the general purpose financial statements. A reportable condition is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as item 2002-1.
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EXHIBIT K-1
Page 2

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the general
purpose financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not
necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not
necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, the reportable
condition identified above is considered to be a material weakness.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, management, the New Jersey State
Department of Education and other state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

LEQCLI, Vieoet L H‘ég;“&. LLp

LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS, LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Public School Accountants

ﬂ///a/ﬂ\

1¢ School Accountant
PSA Number CS00932

Fair Lawn, New Jersey

July 25, 2002
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LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS, LLP EXHIBIT K2

Page 1
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
REGISTERED MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTANTS
17 - 17 ROUTE 208
FAIR LAWN, NJ 07410
TELEPHONE (201) 791-7100

: FACSIMILE (201) 791-3035
DIETER P. LERCH, CPA, RMA, PSA CHRISTINE CORRUBIA, CPA, PSA
GARY J. VINCI, CPA, RMA, PSA ELIZABETH A. SHICK, CPA, RMA, PSA
GARY W. HIGGINS, CPA, RMA, PSA DONNA L. JAPHET, CPA, PSA
JEFFREY C. BLISS, CPA, RMA, PSA RICHARD P. CAHILL, CPA, RMA, PSA
PAUL J. LERCH, CPA, RMA, PSA ANDREW PARENTE, CPA, PSA
JOSEPH F. KELLY, CPA, RMA, PSA JULIUS B. CONSONI, CPA, PSA

JENNIFER TORPEY, CPA, PSA
ROBERT W. HAAG, CPA, PSA

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 98-07

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Trustees

Florham Park Board of Education

Florham Park, New Jersey

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Florham Park Board of Education with the types of compliance requirements
described in the “U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement” and the New
Jersey Compliance Manual “State Grant Compliance Supplement” that are applicable to each of its major state programs for
the year ended June 30, 2002. The Florham Park Board of Education’s major state programs are identified in the “Summary
of Auditor’s Results Section” of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the
requirement of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major state programs is the responsibility of
the Florham Park Board of Education’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Florham Park Board
of Education’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department of
Education, State of New Jersey; OMB Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations” and New Jersey OMB Circular 98-07, "Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants
and State Aid". Those standards and circulars require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Florham
Park Board of Education’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination on the Florham Park Board of Education’s compliance with those requirements.

77



EXHIBIT K-2
Page 2

In our opinion, the Florham Park Board of Education complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to each of its major state programs for the year ended June 30, 2002.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of Florham Park Board of Education is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to state programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered Florham Park Board of Education’s internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major state program in order to determine our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB Circular 98-07.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control
that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of
the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal or state program
being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to
be material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, management, the New Jersey State
Depariment of Education and other siaie awarding agencies and pass-ihrough entities and is not intended to be and shouid
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Liﬂ(‘(:l, Vioer ¢ (-(\Lg'os'LLP

LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS, LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Public School Accountants

PSA Number CS00932

Fair Lawn, New Jersey
July 25, 2002
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NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND

STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE






EXHIBIT K-5
FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND
STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE : )
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

NOTE 1 GENERAL

The accompanying schedules present the activity of all federal and state financial assistance programs of the Florham Park
Board of Education. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1(A) to the Board's general purpose financial statements.
All federal financial assistance received directly from federal agencies, as well as federal financial assistance passed through
other government agencies is included on the schedule of federal financial assistance.

NOTE 2 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules are presented using the modified accrual basis of accounting with the exception of programs
recorded in the food service fund, which are presented using the accrual basis of accounting and those recorded in the special
revenue fund, which are presented using the budgetary basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in
Notes 1(C) to the Board's general purpose financial statements.

NOTE 3 RELATIONSHIP TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with amounts reported in the Board's general purpose financial
statements. The general purpose financial statements present the special revenue fund on both a GAAP basis and a
budgetary basis. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary
basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis
does not. The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $647. See Note 1(D) for a
reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis of accounting for the special revenue fund. Financial assistance
revenues are reported in the Board's general purpose financial statements on a GAAP basis as follows:

Federal State Total
General Fund $1,039,429 $1,039,429
Special Revenue Fund $156,029 133,635 289,664
Enterprise Fund 4939 4,939
Total Financial Assistance $160,968 $1.173,064 $1.334,032

NOTE 4 RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules may not necessarily agree with the amounts reported in the related federal
and state financial reports due to timing differences between the District’s fiscal year and grant program years.

NOTE 5 OTHER

TPAF Social Security contributions represent the amount reimbursed by the state for the employer’s share of social security
contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2002.
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EXHIBIT K-6

Page 1
FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
Part I — Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statement Section
Type of auditors' report issued on financial statements Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:

1) Material weakness(es) identified X vyes no

2) Reportable condition identified that are

not considered to be material weakness(es)? yes X none reported

Noncompliance material to general purpose financial 7
statements noted? X yes no

Federal Awards Section Not Applicable
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EXHIBIT K-6

Page 2
FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONT'D)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
Part I - Summary of Auditor’s Results

State Awards Section
Internal Control overrmajor programs:

(1) Material weakness(es) identified yes X no

(2) Reportable condition identified that are not

considered to be material weakness(es)? yes X none reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
ajor programs Ungqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with N.J. Circular Letter 98-07? yes X no

Identification of major state programs:

GMIS Number(s) ' Name of State Program
02-495-034-5120-011 Special Education Aid
02-495-034-5095-002 ' TPAF Social Security

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $ 300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X nmno
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EXHIBIT K-6
Page 3

FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONT'D)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002 -
Part 2 - Schedule of Financial Statement Findings
This section identifies the reportable conditions, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance

related to the general-purpose financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with
Chapter 5.18 of Government Auditing Standards .

Finding 2002-1
Numerous unrecorded additions were noted in the general fixed assets account group at June 30, 2002.

Criteria or specific requirement:

Generally accepted accounting principles and the State Department of Education's prescribed GAAP
Technical Systems Manual, pursuant to N.J.S.A.18A:4-14 and N.J.A.C. 6:20-2A.

Condition:
Certain fixed asset additions were not included in the District's fixed asset accounting system

Questioned Costs:

None. The financial statements have been adjusted to reflect the unrecorded additions noted during our audit.

Context:
Fixed Assets totalling $108,783 were not recorded on the district's fixed assets records at June 30, 2002.
Effect:

The district's fixed assets accounting and reporting systems' internal control procedures could lead
to unrecorded fixed assets.

Recommendation:

The District's internal control procedures for Fixed Asset Accounting and Reporting be reviewed and revised
to ensure all fixed assets have been recorded in the district's records.
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EXHIBIT K-6

Page 4
FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONT'D)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Part 3 - Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs (Cont'd)
This section identifies the reportable conditions, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance,

including questioned costs, related to the audit of major state programs, as required by OMB
Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB's Circular 98-07.

CURRENT YEAR FEDERAL AWARDS

Not Applicable
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EXHIBIT K-6
Page 5
FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONT'D)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

Part 3 - Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs (Cont'd)

This section identifies the reportable conditions, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance,
including questioned costs, related to the audit of major state programs, as required by OMB
Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB's Circular 98-07.

CURRENT YEAR STATE AWARDS

There are none.
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EXHIBIT K-7
Page 1
FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR-YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

This section identifies the status of prior-year findings related to the general-purpose financial statements

and federal and state awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of

Government Auditing Standards , U.S. OMB Circular A-133 (section .315(a)(b)) and New Jersey OMB's

Circular 98-07.

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

FINDING 2001-1
Condition

Certain expenditures were not budgeted nor charged to the appropriate budget account.

Current Status

Corrective action has been taken.

FINDING 2001-2
Condition

The Treasurer's monthly bank reconcilations included adjustments which were not recorded in the Board Secretary's Report.

Current Status

Corrective action has been taken.

FINDING 2001-3

Condition

Certain fixed asset additions were not included in the District's fixed asset accounting system
Current Status

See Finding 2002-1.
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FLORHAM PARK BOARD OF EDUCATION
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR-YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
This section identifies the status of prior-year findings related to the general-purpose financial statements
and federal and state awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of
Government Auditing Standards , U.S. OMB Circular A-133 (section .315(a)(b)) and New Jersey OMB's
Circular 98-07.
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS (Continued)
FINDING 2001-4
Condition
On-Roll student count did not include certain students received from other districts. In addition, a list was

not prepared of all tiered students which showed their name, grade and classification as well as each
related or intensive service.

Current Status

Corrective action has been taken.
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